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          1  COMMITTEE ON CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Good morning.

          3  Today the Committee on Consumer Affairs will hear

          4  testimony on two pieces of legislation. First the

          5  Committee will address proposed Intro. 813-A, a bill

          6  requiring that the engines of sight-seeing buses

          7  comply with current emission standards as the

          8  condition for obtaining a DCA tour bus license.

          9                 In our first hearing in Intro. 813,

         10  representatives of the tour bus industry express

         11  concern about a provision in the bill which would

         12  allow the Commissioner of Consumer Affairs to

         13  establish a mandatory retirement age for diesel

         14  engines used in tour buses, even if these buses

         15  could meet current emission requirements.

         16                 After discussion with industry

         17  representatives and the Department of Consumer

         18  Affairs, it seemed to reasonable to amend Intro. 813

         19  to remove this provision.

         20                 Today we are joined by Louis Calgano,

         21  Deputy Director of the City's Department of

         22  Transportation, who will discuss the study conducted

         23  by West Virginia University on the emissions of

         24  vintage buses. I would also like to note that

         25  proposed Intro. 813-A and a draft of the
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          2  Environmental Assessment Statement and Negative

          3  Declaration were distributed last week to the

          4  members of this Committee and the full Council.

          5                 After our discussions today, Intro.

          6  813-A and the preconsidered resolution adopting the

          7  Environmental Assessment Statement, will be laid

          8  aside and voted on by this Committee on Friday at

          9  1:00. We will then hold our first hearing on Intro.

         10  821, a bill adjusting the fees collected by tow

         11  operators who remove vehicles under the DARP and

         12  Rotow Program.

         13                 Under the Rotow Program the fees

         14  allowed to be charged by tow operators have been

         15  unchanged for ten years. Under DARP towing fees were

         16  capped three years ago.

         17                 With that, I would like to call on

         18  our first witness, Louis Calgano.

         19                 MR. CALGANO: Good morning. West

         20  Virginia University performed testing for New York

         21  City DOT in New York City in 1999. The tests were

         22  performed as a result of  series of two retrofits

         23  that we did with funding from the Department of

         24  Energy. We were trying to get an emission decrease

         25  using dual fuel, compressed natural gas being
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          2  injected into the double-decker buses and we wanted

          3  to know what type of emissions we were going to

          4  receive, emission benefits.

          5                 Testing was performed using a

          6  transportable heavy-duty vehicle chassis dino and

          7  mobile emissions lab. The West Virginia University

          8  performed extensive work in this type of testing of

          9  heavy-duty driving cycles, and the tests on the

         10  double-deckers were using both the buses under CNG

         11  diesel dual fuel, as well as straight diesel

         12  emissions.

         13                 The test data used was under New York

         14  bus cycle. This cycle is typical of a severe stop

         15  and go conditions found in the congested areas of

         16  Manhattan frequented by the double-decker buses

         17  below 96th Street.

         18                 The results of the West Virginia

         19  University were given out in a report which was

         20  released in January 2000. The test data compares

         21  current diesel emissions with older tour bus

         22  emissions. The chassis testing differs from the

         23  tests required by US EPA, I would like to note,

         24  because under this test under a dino, it is not

         25  where the engine is removed and put on to an
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          2  emission stand and then run tests. So you are

          3  running under a pressure of stop and go with the

          4  force value of the bus taking off.

          5                 What it showed was that we had an

          6  emission value on the double deckers of 17.7 on

          7  particulate matter. In comparison to a 1999 MTA Nova

          8  RTS bus that was also tested under the same

          9  conditions, which had emission value of 0.7. So the

         10  value of the test demonstrated running on straight

         11  diesel, that the emissions of the double-decker

         12  engines were far in excess of current standards.

         13                 The standards that we are trying to

         14  achieve under the proposed legislation are the

         15  current US EPA standards right now, which is .05.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Does anybody

         17  have any questions?

         18                 Thank you very much.

         19                 MR. CALGANO: You are welcome. Thank

         20  you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Before we

         22  continue, I would like to acknowledge my colleagues.

         23  To my extreme left, Council Member Annette Robinson,

         24  Council Member John Sabini and Council Member

         25  Stephen Fiala.
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          2                 Okay, I would like to call on Frank

          3  Vernuccio.

          4                 MR. VERNUCCIO: Good morning, Madam

          5  Chair.

          6                 On behalf of the Bronx Borough

          7  President Fernando Ferrer, I am Frank Vernuccio. We

          8  appreciate the opportunity to testify in support of

          9  legislation which would require tour buses to meet

         10  air quality standards. This hearing also offers an

         11  important opportunity to further a dialogue critical

         12  to the future environmental health and safety of

         13  this City and nation and to offer a comprehensive

         14  strategy for cleaner air by promoting the use of

         15  clean air vehicles.

         16                 The proposed passage of a local law

         17  to impose emission standards for tour buses

         18  recognizes that strong local initiatives protect the

         19  public from the hazards of foul and dirty air, can

         20  also help create the momentum needed to enact a more

         21  comprehensive plan.

         22                 Thus, while we applaud all our

         23  efforts to chart a path toward cleaner air for New

         24  Yorkers, even incremental steps, as represented by

         25  this legislation, exist the need to move fleet
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          2  vehicles, including tour buses, to run on clean

          3  fuels.

          4                 That's why the Borough President

          5  proposed a ten-point plan to address this issue. The

          6  program would use government purchasing power to

          7  develop clean air vehicle manufacturing in New York,

          8  require school, buses and taxis to operate on clean

          9  fuels, require clean air technology for fleet

         10  vehicles and heavy trucks, and convert the entire

         11  City and MTA bus fleets to clean air technology.

         12                 Government must not allow its

         13  resources to continue to foul our and exacerbate the

         14  symptoms of asthma.

         15                 As a former chair of the Health

         16  Committee of the City Council, Borough President

         17  Ferrer knows the facts all too well. Our poorer

         18  children suffer from asthma at a rate more than

         19  double the national average. That's 3.7

         20  hospitalizations per 1,000 children nationally, 9.94

         21  for 1,000 children in New York City, and 20 times

         22  that of affluent areas. We must seize opportunities

         23  to make a difference.

         24                 At a Clean Fuels conference organized

         25  by Borough President Ferrer's Office and others, and
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          2  in testimony before the United States Environmental

          3  Protection Agency last June, Borough President

          4  Ferrer stated that New York City needs a strategic

          5  plan to make our City's air cleaner. The plan

          6  includes:

          7                 - Mandate the City and State to

          8  convert school bus fleets to 100 percent alternate

          9  fuel operating vehicles.

         10                 - Convert medallion taxis to

         11  alternative fuel vehicles.

         12                 - Develop a Request for Proposals to

         13  site original equipment manufacturers in one or more

         14  of the City's Economic Development Zones.

         15                 - Provide incentives for and direct

         16  the siting of, clean air fueling vehicles and

         17  facilities.

         18                 - Require the City's Department of

         19  Environmental Protection and Transportation to

         20  report in collaboration with the Correction, Fire

         21  and Police Departments on requiring new purchases of

         22  emergency and heavy-duty alternative fuel vehicles

         23  based on a review of federal reports that indicate

         24  this conversion can occur and propose a schedule for

         25  implementation.
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          2                 - Require the City's Departments of

          3  Environmental Protection and Transportation to

          4  report in collaboration with the Department for the

          5  Aging on requiring new purchases of paratransit

          6  vehicles to be AFV compliant and propose a schedule

          7  for implementation.

          8                 - Amend Local Law 6 reporting

          9  requirements to include data on OEM and converted

         10  vehicles and their operation and use.

         11                 - Require the City to report on its

         12  compliance the Federal Clean Air Act and the State

         13  Implementation Plan, the state of its participation

         14  in the Clean Cities Program, and the conversion of

         15  fleet, freight and heavy duty vehicles that operate

         16  on local streets to AFV.

         17                 - Require the MTA to convert its

         18  entire fleet or more than 4,300 buses to 100 percent

         19  alternative fuel vehicles, including a requirement

         20  banning new diesel bus purchases by the MTA to add

         21  756 air polluting diesel buses and only 300 clean

         22  fuel natural gas and 250 diesel-hybrid buses to its

         23  City fleet, so it would have 1,040 clean fuel buses

         24  by the end of its program on top of 3,600 diesel

         25  buses with continuous regenerative traps to capture
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          2  pollutants.

          3                 Finally, amend local law 6 to require

          4  100 percent City AFV purchases, including codifying

          5  the existing program to convert the City's entire

          6  franchised bus fleet, currently 1,265 buses, to 100

          7  percent AFV.

          8                 Consistent with this plan, I had also

          9  urged the EPA to adopt the most stringent rules to

         10  cut diesel fuel emissions for trucks and buses

         11  across the United States. Rather than phase-in

         12  through 2010, full implementation no later than 2007

         13  would help drive local, state and regional efforts

         14  to promote clean fuel technologies.

         15                 The MTA Capital Plan missed an

         16  opportunity when it failed to provide that all new

         17  buses purchased operate on clean fuel technology. We

         18  need an accelerated shift to clean air technologies

         19  already in place at the MTA Long Island Bus division

         20  to MTA New York City Transit. The failure of Albany

         21  and City Hall to use its combined majority on the

         22  MTA Board to insist on a 100 percent clean air buses

         23  plan demonstrates the need for a strategic clean air

         24  plan for New York State and New York City.

         25                 Finally, let's look at school buses.
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          2  According to INFORM, a non-profit national

          3  environmental research organization and a leader in

          4  clean fuels education, New York State has more

          5  school buses, one of ten in the entire nation, than

          6  any other state. The New York City Board of

          7  Education alone controls 5,500 school buses.

          8                 Borough President Ferrer, in closing,

          9  urges New Yorkers to call on City Hall in Albany to

         10  embrace this Ten-Point Strategic Clean-Air Plan. Its

         11  supporters already include the National Resources

         12  Defense Council and INFORM. Let's make a difference

         13  and commit to this sound plan for clean air and good

         14  health as we enter this new century. At the federal

         15  level, let's adopt strict rules to cut diesel

         16  emission no later than and, in New York, let's forge

         17  the grand coalition of city and state public

         18  officials and concerned New Yorkers to commit to

         19  this sound plan for clean air and good health as we

         20  enter this new century.

         21                 Thank you, Madam Chair.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Thank you.

         23                 I have two corrections. It is not

         24  Chairman Freed, it is Chairperson Koslowitz.

         25                 MR. VERNUCCIO: I'm sorry.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Thank you.

          3                 Hayim Grant and Thomas Lewis. Both of

          4  you can sit up there.

          5                 MR. LEWIS: Good morning. My name is

          6  Tom Lewis, and I am the President of Grayline New

          7  York Tours.

          8                 Grayline previously has testified on

          9  this amendment, 813-A, that all of our fleet will be

         10  in compliance by next summer with these provisions

         11  and we are here today to show our support for this

         12  provision.

         13                 Additionally, though, I have one

         14  concern, and it speaks to the intention of the

         15  Commission.

         16                 Part of 813 with the remove of the

         17  engine block year provision, they put in that the

         18  Commissioner can revoke or suspend the license,

         19  sight-seeing license of any operator not in

         20  compliance and that last section says that the law

         21  is effective immediately. I guess I am concerned

         22  about what is the intention of the Commission in

         23  applying that? Is that going to be upon renewal of

         24  license? We won't be in compliance until next

         25  summer, so it's really not defined. So I have a
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          2  question there.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: When is your

          4  license over?

          5                 MR. LEWIS: March of 2002 is the

          6  renewal.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: It is based on

          8  the renewal of the license, yes.

          9                 MR. LEWIS: Okay. Thank you. That's

         10  all I have.

         11                 MR. GRANT: Good morning. My name is

         12  Hayim Grant, I am the President of New York Apple

         13  Tours. I would like to thank the members of the

         14  Committee for inviting me here today to present to

         15  you New York Apple Tours' position on proposed

         16  amendment 813-A to the sight-seeing bus licensing

         17  requirements of the Department of Consumer Affairs.

         18                 I would like to comment on Mr.

         19  Calgano's testimony about the West Virginia

         20  University testing. That testing was completed on a

         21  bus that had a retrofit which is not typical of our

         22  standard fleet, and we have had experts review the

         23  testing and conclude that the testing was in error

         24  and particulate matter results were significantly

         25  higher than they would be otherwise and we actually
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          2  hired West Virginia University ourselves to conduct

          3  another test and those test results were

          4  significantly lower than the ones used by the City

          5  and this Committee to determine the effects of the

          6  emissions on our fleet.

          7                 As I stated in my previous testimony

          8  on October 23rd, 2000, New York Apple Tours is ready

          9  to commit to replacing our fleet to meet cleaner

         10  emissions requirements. We are here today to support

         11  an amendment to improve bus emissions as leaders of

         12  this industry and as concerned New Yorkers.

         13                 However, we have several comments on

         14  the proposed amendment as drafted.

         15                 Generally this amendment affects a

         16  very small number of buses in New York City.  There

         17  are only several hundred buses licensed by the DCA

         18  and significantly fewer that would be affected by

         19  this amendment. Out of over 6,000 buses which

         20  operate in our City daily, not including school

         21  buses, this law would mainly affect the operations

         22  of two companies. One, a publicly-held company with

         23  operations worldwide, which has indicated they would

         24  replace their fleet prior to the introduction of

         25  this amendment. And New York Apple Tours, a closely
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          2  held small company with its entire business in New

          3  York City.

          4                 If the City truly wants change, it

          5  should apply regulations fairly across the board to

          6  all bus fleet operators in New York City, including

          7  charter operators, school buses and the MTA. These

          8  operators carry passengers around our city just like

          9  us, and should not be treated any differently.

         10                 The strict emissions law that applies

         11  to all New York City bus operators would truly bring

         12  change to our City.

         13                 Our second general comment is that

         14  the proposed amendment establishes two sets of rules

         15  - one for foreign-built buses, and the other for

         16  American-built buses. The double-decker bus industry

         17  has always relied upon foreign-built buses. The

         18  proposed amendment unfairly discriminates against

         19  foreign-built buses which did not have at the time

         20  or original manufacture installed engines with a

         21  Certificate of Conformity issued by the EPA by

         22  requiring that those foreign-built buses, no matter

         23  what their age, have replacement engines which meet

         24  2001 emission standards.

         25                 On some buses this may be impossible.
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          2  By contrast, the proposed amendment permits

          3  American-built buses to operate with engines that

          4  just have a Certificate of Conformity no matter what

          5  year the certificate conforms to - it could be a

          6  1985, 1990 or a 1995 standard. This is unfair to the

          7  double-decker bus industry. If an American-built bus

          8  can have any certificate of conformity which

          9  complies with EPA standards so should a

         10  foreign-built bus. We believe the proper method is

         11  for the amendment to establish a minimum emissions

         12  standard for all buses operated in New York City,

         13  and such standards may be associated with the year

         14  of original manufacture of each bus or any other

         15  standard which would apply fairly across the board

         16  to all bus operators.

         17                 Third, the proposed amendment creates

         18  certain restrictions with respect to installation of

         19  engines in buses by referring to engine model year.

         20  We believe that the intent of the amendment is to

         21  reduce emissions, and therefore, the proper standard

         22  the amendment should apply is the emission standard

         23  by which the engine complies and not the year of

         24  manufacture. This would ensure a certain level of

         25  emissions from engines installed.
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          2                 We believe the proposed amendment to

          3  Section 20-376(b)(2) as written applies new

          4  emissions standards retroactively to a date

          5  uncertain. This is unfair to the industry given that

          6  the language of the proposed amendment has yet to be

          7  finalized, and it is uncertain to us as operators

          8  what standards will be required.

          9                 We oppose the proposed amendment

         10  Section 20-376(b)(3) as it applies to buses already

         11  licensed. This section would require that all buses

         12  currently operating which do not meet this

         13  amendment's standards would not have their licenses

         14  renewed in Spring 2002. We believe that this section

         15  should include a reasonable transition period for

         16  operators to be able to convert and replace their

         17  fleet to comply with the new standards.

         18                 Such a transition period would allow

         19  operators, especially closely-held companies, such

         20  as New York Apple Tours, to be able to afford to

         21  replace their fleets, by being able to maintain the

         22  size of their fleet and current levels of revenue.

         23                 In my testimony of October 23rd, I

         24  had suggested a period of five years.

         25                 Our final comment is that the
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          2  proposed amendment to Section 20-383(a) is vague and

          3  should be clarified with respect to the definition

          4  of "license". At some points it appears to refer to

          5  the operator's general license, and at others it

          6  appears to refer to the license of a specific bus.

          7  We believe that the intent of the proposed amendment

          8  is to refer to the license of a specific bus.

          9                 New York Apple Tours is proud to be

         10  the leader of this industry. We have showed our

         11  great city to thousands of visitors for close to ten

         12  years, and we look forward to working together to

         13  improve our City's emissions levels.

         14                 We urge you to consider adopting a

         15  single emissions standard which would apply to all

         16  bus operators in New York City, not just those

         17  licensed by DCA, one which would apply to both

         18  foreign and domestic buses equally and a reasonable

         19  transition period to allow existing operators to

         20  meet that standard. Thank you for inviting me here

         21  today and for the opportunity to present our

         22  comments.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA: Thank you,

         24  Madam Chair. Mr. Grant, welcome back.

         25                 When we met last we had a lengthy
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          2  conversation back and forth between yourself and the

          3  Committee, I just want to capture some of the

          4  figures. How many buses are in your fleet at this

          5  time?

          6                 MR. GRANT: We operate 26 buses right

          7  now.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA: My recollection

          9  was that you have undertaken a project to add to

         10  that. You have buses on order?

         11                 MR. GRANT: We have buses that will be

         12  placed in service very shortly. We plan to increase

         13  our fleet to 50 buses.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA: And at what

         15  time would those 50 buses come on line?

         16                 MR. GRANT: They would be added over

         17  the next year.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA: So, when the

         19  transition period that you spoke of today and at the

         20  last meeting, you would need five years to do a full

         21  phase-in?

         22                 MR. GRANT: That's right.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA: And just out of

         24  curiosity --

         25                 MR. GRANT: That's a reasonable
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          2  period. I mean, we could bring that down on an

          3  aggressive schedule, three years at the minimum

          4  would be --

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA: Yes, I think

          6  that is what we were talking about last meeting,

          7  what was the absolute drop-dead date for a phase-in?

          8                 MR. GRANT: On an aggressive timetable

          9  we could probably meet into a three years.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA: Okay, thank you

         11  very much.

         12                 Thank you, Madam Chair.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Thank you very

         14  much.

         15                 MR. GRANT: Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: That completes

         17  this portion of the meeting, and now I would like to

         18  call on Norman Teitler.

         19                 MR. TEITLER: Good morning, Madam

         20  Chair. My name is Norman Teitler, and I am the

         21  Executive Director of the Metropolitan New York

         22  Towing and Autobody Association.

         23                 My comments are directed towards

         24  support of Intro. 821 that is before us today.

         25                 I have dealt with this Committee and
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          2  the Counsel to this Committee in trying to arrive at

          3  an increase in rates that would adequately

          4  compensate those companies that perform services on

          5  behalf of the Police Department in retrieving cars

          6  that are involved in accidents and in stolen and

          7  abandoned cars on the streets of the City of New

          8  York.

          9                 Just to reiterate a little bit for

         10  the Council members and put on the record what are

         11  the justifications for increasing these rates? The

         12  towing industry had not had a rate increase in ten

         13  years. The cost of fuel, especially in the last

         14  year, has increased the cost of operations

         15  substantially.

         16                 The rate increase to be set in this

         17  new bill is in line with what other cities

         18  throughout the United States charge, as well as

         19  other agencies of the City of New York.

         20                 The City of New York's Sheriff

         21  Office, the Marshals, the New York City Police

         22  Department Traffic Enforcement Towers all charge

         23  $150, which is more than the amount in this bill, to

         24  perform a simple type of towing removal. Dallas,

         25  Texas charges $95. SanFrancisco, California charges
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          2  $124. Los Angeles charges $117. Chicago charges

          3  $105. The State of New York changed the law in 1995

          4  requiring all tow trucks to possess additional

          5  insurance. There was no adjustment to the towing

          6  rate since that time to compensate the towing

          7  companies for the increase in premiums for

          8  insurance, as well as workers' compensation.

          9                 In 1999, the State of New York

         10  amended the lien law requiring towers who do Police

         11  Department tows, which is DARP and Rotow, to send

         12  notices by certified mail to all lien holders. This

         13  increased the cost per vehicle towed by between the

         14  minimum of $8 to maximum of $11 per lien holder.

         15  This bill will hopefully offset some of those costs.

         16  And simple economics and business sense will

         17  indicate that the cost of living and operating a

         18  business in New York City has skyrocketed over the

         19  last ten years. With equipment, insurance, worker

         20  compensation, the fact that tow truck drivers now

         21  need special endorsements on their licenses and are

         22  receiving greater salaries, radio air time, and

         23  workers compensation has all increased in cost and

         24  hopefully this increase will help the towing

         25  companies economically so they can survive and
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          2  continue to perform this type of service to the City

          3  of New York.

          4                 As far as storage, we haven't seen an

          5  increase in storage rates in the last ten years, and

          6  as anybody knows who lives in the City of New York,

          7  the leasing of real estate has increased

          8  substantially in New York City over the last ten

          9  years.

         10                 To park a car at Kennedy Airport, we

         11  pay $24 for 24 hours, and they have no obligations

         12  for liability if something happens to the car. Well,

         13  if a tower secures a car in their yard, they have

         14  multiple obligations. It must be insured for all of

         15  the things that that involves.

         16                 We want to thank the Chair of this

         17  Committee for working with us, for trying to reach a

         18  point where we can get a rate increase that meets

         19  the needs of industry.

         20                 One point, and I know someone else is

         21  going to speak about it, but I just wanted to bring

         22  it across, is that when DARP was originally

         23  conceived, one of the requirements that was set was

         24  that the facility, the DARP company that was

         25  licensed in order to participate had to have a
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          2  repair shop.

          3                 A few years ago this Committee, at

          4  Chairwoman Koslowitz' insistence, decided that we

          5  would no longer need a repair facility as it would

          6  give a greater opportunity for more people to

          7  participate, because people who didn't have repair

          8  facilities were shut out of the program. And the

          9  reason we at that time changed that no mileage

         10  charge would be charged if it came back to your

         11  facility was that the towing company had an

         12  opportunity to get repair work, so why wouldn't they

         13  want to bring it back to their facility, and they

         14  would do it, in essence, without being paid. I was

         15  contacted by a number of companies who saw the bill,

         16  who aren't here necessarily today, who told me that

         17  they are a simple towing company, they have no

         18  repair facility, they only make money on hook-up

         19  fees, mileage and storage, and they wanted to let

         20  this Committee know that in their opinion they

         21  appreciate the fact that they have increased the

         22  mileage fees, if we tow the car any place else but

         23  back to their facility, but since they have no other

         24  way of making any additional income, they felt that

         25  it was improper not to have mileage fees back to
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          2  their facility also.

          3                 Two other things, which is not in

          4  regard to Intro. 821, but I feel this Committee

          5  should address prior, in some amendment way. The

          6  federal government changed by statute and prohibited

          7  the states and any political subdivisions of the

          8  states which would be the City of New York from

          9  governing certain things. There was a court case in

         10  the New York City area challenging that federal

         11  regulation called Ace Autobody versus the City of

         12  New York, which the City was successful, it went up

         13  on appeal to the 2nd Circuit Court of Appeals and

         14  the City was successful in that sense. When it was

         15  successful, let me explain what I mean. This court

         16  said the City of New York can have a program for

         17  non-consensual tows and set the rates in those

         18  programs, but the City of New York is no longer

         19  allowed to mandate a rate for consensual tows. There

         20  are three sections of the law:

         21                 Section 2509, which still contains

         22  language which is in essence now prohibited by

         23  federal law and Court decision dealing with

         24  consensual rates.

         25                 Section 2507 deals with the posting
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          2  of rates on tow trucks, which is no longer allowed

          3  by law.

          4                 And one other section, Section 20-500

          5  which deals with the amount of insurance a tow truck

          6  company should have indicates a lesser amount than

          7  is now required by New York State law under DMV.

          8                 So, those issues of which nobody can

          9  have any opposition to because the state and federal

         10  government have taken it out of our jurisdiction,

         11  and I believe that if we are amending it, this is

         12  not something to be in favor of or be opposed to, it

         13  should be done so that the Administrative Code of

         14  the City of New York is not contrary to what is

         15  allowed, required by state or federal law. And other

         16  than that, I propose the bill as it is written.

         17                 Thank you very much.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Thank you.

         19                 Council Member Sabini.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: Thank you,

         21  Madam Chair. Good morning.

         22                 Good morning, Mr. Teitler. I just

         23  have two quick questions, since you are sort of an

         24  expert in the field.

         25                 What is the average length of stay of
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          2  a vehicle towed under DARP?

          3                 MR. TEITLER: If a vehicle is towed

          4  under DARP, two things can happen: The owner can

          5  come and claim his vehicle. That normally will

          6  happen sometimes within two days, except if somebody

          7  is hospitalized.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: Right, I

          9  understand what could happen. I am asking what is

         10  the average?

         11                 MR. TEITLER: Average time is three to

         12  four days.

         13                 Now, if the vehicle owner decides to

         14  remove his license plates and belongings and not pay

         15  the charges because there is nowhere in the law can

         16  we require that, that vehicle can remain for a

         17  minimum of 90 days, because it has to be liened in

         18  order to be legally disposed of, and there are no

         19  charges collected on that.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: Under this

         21  bill the fees are increased, but the ones that the

         22  Police Department pays, whether the removal of a

         23  vehicle or not, and I am sort of wondering is that

         24  fair? Since you are claiming your costs are going

         25  up.
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          2                 MR. TEITLER: I can tell you that I

          3  would have loved to have had the gracious period of

          4  time to wait for the City to do an impact study

          5  because the minute we put that in we have a

          6  budgetary impact. The City of New York Police

          7  Department should increase the rates they pay for

          8  vehicles towed back to the pound.

          9                 There are several other things in the

         10  towing area that have to be addressed but they are

         11  more difficult and they will require the testimony

         12  of different agencies because they affect different

         13  agencies, whether that is PD, DOT, or DCA. But you

         14  are 100 percent right, those fees at some point in

         15  the future should be increased also.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: How many

         17  vehicles does the industry tow for the Police

         18  Department?

         19                 MR. TEITLER: Between accidents and

         20  Rotow cars, approximately 150,000 a year maybe.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: That is

         22  vehicles that the Police Department pays you to tow?

         23                 MR. TEITLER: None of those vehicles

         24  that I just mentioned does the Police Department pay

         25  us to tow, except for those vehicles returned to the
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          2  pound, I would assume 10,000 a year maybe.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: And those are

          4  the vehicles the Police Department pays you to tow?

          5                 MR. TEITLER: Yes, those are the

          6  vehicles that --

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: And what

          8  percent -- so that is about ten percent of all of

          9  the Rotow and DARP?

         10                 MR. TEITLER: No, no. DARP vehicles

         11  the Police Department never pays.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: Okay. Ten

         13  percent of the Rotow.

         14                 MR. TEITLER: Well, it's a little more

         15  than ten percent.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: The Rotow

         17  number is smaller, the number you cited was both.

         18                 MR. TEITLER: Yes. What occurred today

         19  is, of course car theft is down in New York City

         20  tremendously, and because of a conflict between the

         21  Sanitation Department and the Police Department, the

         22  private towing industry has now been returning a

         23  greater amount of cars to the pound, and I would

         24  assume that number could be almost 40 to 50 percent

         25  of the vehicles Rotow'd, because we are picking up
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          2  the junk that is sitting on the City street, instead

          3  of the Department of Sanitation.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: What

          6  percentage of the business comes from DARP?

          7                 MR. TEITLER: It depends on the

          8  individual company. If a company has a repair

          9  facility and is able to repair cars, they have

         10  additional income from the repair end of the

         11  business, a third, some companies may be 50 percent

         12  or more. If a company is a straight tower, you

         13  couldn't survive simply on DARP and Rotow and remain

         14  in business, so that may be 20 percent of his

         15  income.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: And that

         17  applies to Rotow also?

         18                 MR. TEITLER: That applies to Rotow.

         19  Nobody could survive simply on receiving as a towing

         20  company only DARP and Rotow calls. There just aren't

         21  enough calls. The lists have expanded, there are too

         22  many companies on the list and not enough calls per

         23  company to justify anybody remaining in business

         24  only doing that type of business.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: And my last
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          2  question, Intro. 821 creates two different towing

          3  fees for vehicles based on the vehicle's registered

          4  weight; what type of vehicles would be under each

          5  category?

          6                 MR. TEITLER: We set a break-off point

          7  in the bill at 10,000 pounds, so any passenger car,

          8  even the SUV vehicles are all classified under

          9  10,000 pounds. Small vans would classify under

         10  10,000. Step-up vans, which is these Fed Ex trucks

         11  and UPS trucks, would be in that, and a few other

         12  additional type Con Edison trucks that have -- when

         13  they go up to the light poles and stuff like that,

         14  those vehicles would be above 10,000. We have a

         15  cutoff point that vehicles above 15,000 pounds are

         16  not governed by this statute. So we are only

         17  increasing rates for those vehicles between 10,000

         18  and 15,000 pounds.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Thank you.

         20                 Council Member Robinson.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBINSON: My question

         22  has been answered, Madam Chairperson.

         23                 Thank you.

         24                 MR. TEITLER: Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Thank you.
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          2                 I would like to call Peter O'Connell.

          3                 I just want to say that it seems that

          4  we have been dealing with this actually I think for

          5  my whole tenure in the City Council.

          6                 MR. O'CONNELL: Good morning. My name

          7  is Peter O'Connell, and I am Counsel to the Empire

          8  State Towing and Recovery Association. We have about

          9  120 members in and around New York City, and I am

         10  speaking on their behalf today. And I know in all of

         11  the years you have been dealing with this, I don't

         12  know if you ever thought you would have the day

         13  where Norman and the rest of this would be

         14  applauding you for efforts that you are doing on a

         15  bill that today we truly are.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: We had a lot

         17  of talks.

         18                 MR. O'CONNELL: Yes.

         19                 This is a very fair bill that you

         20  have enacted. There would be other ways of going

         21  about it that may have been preferable to us,

         22  particularly we would have favored, as Norman

         23  mentioned as well, a mileage rate to be attached to

         24  the bill. But as a matter of fact, most

         25  municipalities that do have programs that deal with
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          2  tows such as this, not all of them have mileage

          3  provisions in them. This is a fair rate that you

          4  have, and Norman gave several suggestions, examples

          5  from other parts of the country, and you can see

          6  from that that your rates are indeed in keeping with

          7  where the rest of the country is finally.

          8                 I have made a couple or three

          9  suggested technical suggestions with respect to the

         10  bill. Norman also mentioned that Section 20-509 has

         11  been effectively repealed by the Ace Autobody

         12  Decision. You refer back to that section in defining

         13  both the mileage charges and the storage fees. I

         14  would suggest that Section 509 be repealed and that

         15  you plug those provisions into the bill, the

         16  provisions of the bill that deal with DARP and

         17  Rotow, and I have added an attachment that would do

         18  that if you so choose. As I say, those are technical

         19  questions.

         20                 Another one Norman also mentioned,

         21  that the DARP program deals with vehicles of under

         22  15,000 pounds, and I have a slight concern when the

         23  language only says in 10,000 or over it can be

         24  construed to apply to vehicles above 15 and the

         25  suggestions that I offer also would have a cap
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          2  figure in there to clarify that intent of the bill.

          3                 The only other suggestion that I

          4  would make, and I would not want this as part of

          5  this bill, is another issue that Mr. Sabini touched

          6  on in particular, the rates for returning vehicles

          7  to the police pound. They remained unchanged in the

          8  bill. They are inadequate and in reality it would

          9  probably be impossible to fix a totally adequate

         10  rate for that type of a service. The police pound I

         11  believe is in College Point, and when you are

         12  bringing a vehicle from Staten Island or Brooklyn,

         13  you are looking at a minimum of two, often five

         14  hours out of your day to take a vehicle up there, so

         15  it would be awfully tough to give fair compensation

         16  for that, but I do think that should be an issue for

         17  another day and not a part of this bill.

         18                 Again, I would like to thank you very

         19  much for this bill. It is a very welcome relief to

         20  the industry.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: I just want to

         22  mention that we are in discussion right now with

         23  Corp Counsel on the provision to appeal 2059 was it?

         24                 MR. O'CONNELL: 20-509. Okay.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Thank you very
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          2  much.

          3                 MR. O'CONNELL: Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Paul

          5  Rubenfeld.

          6                 Good morning, Madam Chairman. I never

          7  know whether to say chair or chairman, but good

          8  morning anyway. I am glad it is not of your doing

          9  but I would hope you would make not of it, that the

         10  Council this time did not make any notification to

         11  the industry about this hearing, so I think they

         12  were very remiss in not letting all of us know about

         13  it. If I didn't have a legislative office in

         14  Brooklyn and one up in Albany, I am afraid I

         15  wouldn't be sitting here and have the pleasure of

         16  looking and addressing you people.

         17                 Also, just a small note, 10:00 Monday

         18  morning is the worst time for the tow people to

         19  attend, it's our busiest time.

         20                 I am Paul Rubenfeld, de facto

         21  chairman of the New York City Tow Advisory Board,

         22  and I am the Director of the Gasoline Automotive

         23  Service Dealers Association, better known by the

         24  acronym of GASDA. I come to you today to applaud you

         25  for considering this legislation to improve and
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          2  modernize the fee structure for the towing industry,

          3  much of it dating back to 1978.

          4                 We all know all too well the

          5  tremendous increases in our expenses, such as

          6  insurance, fuel, taxes, equipment, manpower and rent

          7  in this last decade. I hope that your action today

          8  will save many of our businesses and enable us to

          9  continue to serve the motoring public.

         10                 I have only five suggestions in

         11  reference to Intro. 821, three of which have been

         12  mentioned very well by the two prior speakers so I

         13  will just touch on them just to let you know that I

         14  am in concurrence with what they said, without any

         15  elaboration.

         16                 The first, which was mentioned by

         17  both speakers, that Section 1, Subdivision (a)

         18  should be amended by deleting from the words

         19  "charges to additional mile or fraction thereof" to

         20  the end. This obsolete ceiling for tow rates is

         21  invalidated and preempted by federal statute and

         22  case law from federal appeal courts. I refer

         23  specifically to the 1994 federal intrastate trucking

         24  deregulation, the Mayer Decision in Atlanta, the Ace

         25  Autobody Decision here in New York, the Galveston
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          2  Texas Decision, and more recently the Tocher case in

          3  California, all from Appeal Courts at the federal

          4  level. All of the decisions have the same basic

          5  theme, that is that municipalities cannot regulate

          6  consensual towing.

          7                 My second suggestion. That Section 1,

          8  Subdivision (b) should be deleted in its entirety

          9  for the same reasoning used to amend Subdivision

         10  (a).

         11                 Now, third. Section 2, Subdivision

         12  (b) should be amended by deleting the phrase the

         13  first day of storage for such vehicle in the three

         14  places where it is used. There is no sound basis for

         15  the adding storage for the price of a tow. It is bad

         16  enough that you, our Counsel, removed labor from

         17  acceptable charges. I cannot rationalize why this

         18  Council refuses to allow a towman to charge for his

         19  labor and then compels him to store vehicles for

         20  free!

         21                 Fourth. Section 3, Subdivision (c)

         22  Paragraph (1) should be amended on line 21 to read

         23  $145. This amount is derived by using the same

         24  reasoning that were used in 1978. That is the price

         25  of a tow at that time, $35, plus the expense to
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          2  transfer the vehicle to the pound, at that time $25,

          3  using the same reasoning that we did then we arrive

          4  at a figure of $145. This is the same topic that his

          5  Honor Sabini brought up about transfer of cars to

          6  the pound.

          7                 And last, Section 4 I really think

          8  should be amended to allow these changes to take

          9  effect immediately when it becomes law.

         10                 The Intro. currently states that it

         11  will take effect 90 days after it becomes law,

         12  usually it will take a month or two to become law,

         13  then 90 days, and then some delay on the part of the

         14  DCA with the making of the regulations and the

         15  printing and the so forth, so you are looking at the

         16  earliest maybe at six months down the line. I would

         17  suggest make it take effect immediately. Give us the

         18  relief that we sought for the last 21 years, the

         19  first speaker mentioned it has been over ten years,

         20  but actually it has been over 21 years since we have

         21  had the raise. So, give it to us immediately, why

         22  hold us off for another six months.

         23                 That's the end of my brief

         24  suggestions. Thank you for asking me to come in.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: And I thank
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          2  you for your suggestions.

          3                 Steve Coppolino.

          4                 MR. COPPOLINO: Hello. My name is

          5  Steven Coppolino, from Coppolino's in College Point.

          6  Me and my family have several locations throughout

          7  the Borough, maybe ten or 15 tow companies, through

          8  my family, brothers and sisters, and we have been in

          9  the towing business for many, many years.

         10                 I am in support of the bill, 821. I

         11  think it is a very good bill. It is long overdue. I

         12  think the rates are fair and reasonable. Some of the

         13  other things I would like to see, if we have enough

         14  -- I don't know if we have enough time to put it in

         15  now, but one is possibly controlling costs by

         16  sharing equipment and dispatchers. I think that

         17  would also help in sharing costs. Right now the

         18  Department of Consumer Affairs prohibits the sharing

         19  of any dispatchers and equipment. I think that would

         20  be favorable, and help control cost.

         21                 Paul Rubenfeld mentioned it would be

         22  very nice if it would become immediate. I think that

         23  is great, as well. That would be great.

         24                 The 30-minute ETA seems to be very

         25  hard for some of the companies to meet. Presently I
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          2  believe it is 20 or 25 percent of DCA's hearings

          3  have to do with tow companies failing to respond

          4  within 30 minutes. I think the sharing equipment and

          5  assisting another licensed tower who is already

          6  approved to participate in a program would be very

          7  helpful in meeting that ETA, also in getting traffic

          8  and gridlock, relieving gridlock and freeing the

          9  officers from the scene would be very helpful so

         10  they can go on and deal with other emergencies

         11  besides automobile accidents.

         12                 That's pretty much all I have to say.

         13                 Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Thank you very

         15  much.

         16                 Joseph Robles.

         17                 MR. ROBLES: Good morning. My name is

         18  Joseph Robles. I am President of Knights Collision

         19  Experts located in Brooklyn, New York. My company is

         20  a participant in the DARP and Rotow Programs.

         21                 I would like to comment on the issue

         22  of hook-up fee and towing of vehicles. It has been

         23  proposed that the hook-up fee be increased to $90

         24  for vehicles registered up to 10,000 pounds, and

         25  $125 for vehicles weighing more.
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          2                 You have also increased the mileage

          3  fees from $3.50 to $4.00 a mile. I support this bill

          4  and its increases, however, I would like to address

          5  four issues.

          6                 Issue number one, the mileage rate.

          7  While I believe our industry can live with the

          8  proposed hook-up fees of $4.00 per mile for

          9  passenger vehicles, this mileage fee is inadequate

         10  for transporting large commercial vehicles.

         11                 We are required under the DARP and

         12  Rotow laws to transport vehicles up to 15,000

         13  pounds. Large and more costly towing equipment must

         14  be used to transport these vehicles.

         15                 The City currently permits arterial

         16  towers to charge $5 per mile for vehicles with

         17  weights between 4,500 and 10,000 pounds and $10 a

         18  mile for vehicles between 10,000 and 18,000 pounds.

         19  It is asked that a similar rate for mileage be

         20  implemented for the towing of commercial vehicles

         21  under the DARP Program.

         22                 Issue number two. Mileage back to our

         23  storage facility. We still believe that not being

         24  allowed to charge for mileage back to our storage

         25  facility is wrong. A towing company is required to
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          2  tow a vehicle anywhere within the City at the

          3  direction of the vehicle owner. The towing company

          4  is then permitted to charge two fees - a fee for the

          5  hook-up and a fee for the distance traveled. This

          6  compensates the towing company for the wear-n-tear

          7  placed upon their vehicle as well as time. When then

          8  if a vehicle is towed back to our storage facility

          9  can't we charge for that mileage? It is still

         10  wear-n-tear on our vehicles. A taxi charges an

         11  initial fee and then there is an additional fee for

         12  mileage wherever it goes. Taxis are also permitted

         13  to charge while sitting idle. We can't.

         14                 The point is, if I am transporting a

         15  vehicle, I should be compensated for the mileage

         16  wherever the vehicle is towed. The City permits

         17  arterial towers to charge mileage when the vehicle

         18  is returned to their storage facility. There should

         19  be no double standard.

         20                 We should be permitted to charge

         21  mileage from the point of hook up to its final

         22  destination, wherever that may be.

         23                 My third issue is unusual

         24  preparation. DCA rules previously permitted an

         25  unusual preparation to be charged for certain types
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          2  of recoveries.

          3                 In the past this Committee, and in

          4  particular, Chairperson Koslowitz, had stated that

          5  you had seen this "unusual preparation fee"

          6  appearing on many tow slips as just an additional

          7  way to charge the consumer more for a tow.

          8                 By eliminating this fee, there are

          9  times towing companies are not adequately

         10  compensated for the work required on certain tolls.

         11  At times there are situations requiring the use of

         12  additional personnel and/or equipment.

         13                 Under today's law there is no

         14  provision for adequate compensation.

         15                 DCA rules previously permitted an

         16  unusual preparation fee to be charged under certain

         17  conditions. These conditions were when the vehicle

         18  was located on an embankment, overturned, into a

         19  building or a guardrail, under an overpass bridge or

         20  entwined with other vehicles, and required the

         21  additional hooking up and dropping of the vehicle.

         22                 There are times more than one truck

         23  is required. There are times additional personnel

         24  are required. While it may be true that certain

         25  towing companies added this charge improperly, we
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          2  propose that this provision be reinstated but with

          3  the following conditions:

          4                 On the authorization to tow form an

          5  area exists indicating unusual preparation, and the

          6  circumstances for which this fee may be charged.

          7  Next to this area will be boxes indicating yes or no

          8  and an area for police officer to sign. The police

          9  officer on the scene will be required to indicate on

         10  this form whether this fee is or is not warranted by

         11  checking the appropriate box and signing their name

         12  and identification number.

         13                 There should be no question as to

         14  whether a vehicle was or was not on an embankment,

         15  overturned, wedged, et cetera. If additional tow

         16  trucks or personnel are required, the police officer

         17  will acknowledge this information on the

         18  authorization to tow form accordingly.

         19                 This is similar to what is done today

         20  on certain Rotow recoveries. Police officers

         21  acknowledge on the police voucher whether the

         22  doubling of the tow fee is permissible due to the

         23  type of recovery.

         24                 Naturally, if Police Emergency

         25  Services overturns a vehicle or frees a vehicle from
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          2  an embankment, et cetera, the police officer will

          3  not authorize the towing company charge for a

          4  service they did not perform.

          5                 We propose that fees be negotiated

          6  for these specific types of recoveries by the police

          7  officer being required to authorize unusual

          8  preparation charge. We believe this should remove

          9  any allegation of impropriety on the part of a

         10  towing operator and adequately compensate the towing

         11  company when warranted.

         12                 We also believe that similar

         13  provision should be included in the Rotow laws.

         14                 Issue number four. Rotow hook-ups. At

         15  times police officers will direct the Rotow vehicle

         16  to be brought to the precinct for fingerprinting or

         17  for some other reason. We may get a call later that

         18  day or the next day to pick up the vehicle and bring

         19  it to our storage facility. We believe we should be

         20  entitled to charge an additional hook-up fee for

         21  each destination the vehicle is towed and dropped.

         22  No such provision exists under the current law.

         23                 We also believe that we should be

         24  able to charge for mileage and towing these vehicles

         25  back to our shop.
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          2                 I thank you for your consideration,

          3  and this opportunity to comment.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: And I thank

          5  you very much.

          6                 I would like to call Raanan

          7  Yaakobovitch.

          8                 Murray, we are saving you for last.

          9                 MR. YAAKOBOVITCH: Good morning. My

         10  name is Raanan Yaakobovitch. I am the President of

         11  Citywide Towing, which is located in Manhattan, and

         12  I support this bill, however, with a few

         13  modifications.

         14                 I wish to speak about storage. My

         15  company participates in both Rotow and DARP Program,

         16  I see rates for storage under the DARP program

         17  increased from $10 to $15 for second and third day,

         18  and from $15 to $20 per day thereafter. I also see

         19  where the storage rate for motorvehicle has been

         20  increased from $10 to $15 per day for the first

         21  three days, and from $12 to $20 thereafter. No one

         22  knows why these two systems of rates have developed,

         23  nor is there basis for this practice continuing. All

         24  this does is cause confusion. Why can't uniform

         25  daily storage rate be set. Whether a vehicle is
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          2  stored at my place of business for one day, two days

          3  or 22 days, it is occupying space. My landlord

          4  doesn't charge me a different rate for first day,

          5  second day or third day.

          6                 I also believe that we should be

          7  entitled to charge for the first day of storage

          8  under the DARP. The law provided under the Rotow

          9  Program, if I hook up a vehicle and tow it to a

         10  destination of the consumer, I am permitted to

         11  charge a hook-up in mileage fee.

         12                 If the vehicle comes back to my

         13  facility, I am currently not permitted to charge

         14  mileage and for the first day of storage. Now, I am

         15  performing an additional service by storing this

         16  vehicle. Why then I am not entitled to charge

         17  storage for that day? The City permits arterial

         18  highway towers to charge for mileage and for the

         19  first day of storage when a vehicle is towed back to

         20  their storage facility, there should be no double

         21  standard.

         22                 DCA rules require that I maintain

         23  4,000 square feet of dedicated storage space to

         24  participate in this program. Well, I found this

         25  amount of space to be extensive, based on the number
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          2  of vehicles towed under those programs. We are

          3  required to have this space. The storage fee charged

          4  per car per day goes to offset the amount of lost

          5  pay to maintain this required space.

          6                 You have reported the higher fee for

          7  the hook-up of larger vehicles, but you have failed

          8  to implement a higher fee for the storage. Storing a

          9  14,000 pound vehicle occupies more space than a

         10  4,000 pound vehicle. The City permits arterial

         11  towers to charge $35 per day for vehicles between

         12  4,500 pounds and 10,000 pounds, and $50 per day for

         13  vehicles between 10,000 pound and 18,000 pounds. I

         14  do not believe that $15 and $20 fees is adequate

         15  compensation for these largest vehicles. Just as my

         16  landlord charges me for square foot, I believe a

         17  larger vehicle should pay more.

         18                 You have heard where parking lots

         19  charge more to park sports utility vehicles, simply

         20  because it has the label of sport utility vehicle

         21  attached. Today DCA Commission have the law that I

         22  must tow 14,000 pound vehicle for $65 while they

         23  have permitted the storage rate for a commercial

         24  vehicle of 6,000 pounds to be exempt from the

         25  standard storage rate.
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          2                 Each time Commissioner or their

          3  designee comes and goes, rules are changed by

          4  individuals who have no comprehension of our

          5  industry and often without any studies being

          6  performed.

          7                 We would like to have specific

          8  storage rates for larger vehicles placed into the

          9  law.

         10                 I ask that this Committee set storage

         11  rates in line with what arterial towers are

         12  permitted to charge.

         13                 I am also aware that under Section

         14  20-509 of the Administrative Code, where the storage

         15  rates are currently addressed, it does not

         16  specifically state that these rates are applicable

         17  to the DARP program. Additionally, the storage rate

         18  states for each 24 hour, while I am aware that there

         19  has been -- understanding is for calendar day. It

         20  states in the language appearing on both the

         21  authorization to tow form and Bill of Rights

         22  designed by the Department of Consumer Affairs. The

         23  language in the law must be amended to read per

         24  calendar day.

         25                 I would also like to add that while
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          2  this rate increase appears to be substantial, things

          3  aren't always as they appear. We will not be

          4  collecting this money on many vehicles. Rotow

          5  vehicles which are unclaimed are delivered to the

          6  Police Department property clerk pound. The City

          7  pays us an average of $7.10 per day for up to ten

          8  days. This is something I would like to address at

          9  another time.

         10                 Today laws and rules permit vehicle

         11  owners to remove their property and abandon their

         12  vehicle without paying the towing and storage fees

         13  permitted by law. In order to dispose of DARP

         14  vehicles, we must lien them. Not only have we not

         15  received the towing and storage fee for vehicles we

         16  have provided, we now have to go into our pocket to

         17  pay someone to get rid of them.

         18                 While operating in Manhattan, I am

         19  paying Manhattan rates. I personally would like to

         20  see $20 storage rate much higher, I believe that a

         21  $20 per calendar day rate for each day stored, not

         22  $15 and then $20, is for passenger and smaller

         23  commercial vehicle, and then larger commercial

         24  vehicles pay more, as I have previously said.

         25                 I thank you for having me here today.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Thank you.

          3                 Last, but not least --

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: Madam Chair,

          5  maybe you would want to leave a copy of his

          6  testimony, since there are so many recommendations.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Yes, that is a

          8  good idea.

          9                 Do you have a copy?

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: And Mr.

         11  Robles' statement as well.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Right. Okay,

         13  thank you.

         14                 See, everybody is here for you,

         15  Murray.

         16                 MR. RUDE: Thank you.

         17                 I represent the Society of Citizens

         18  for Free Choice in Towing, Incorporated, which has

         19  been referred to as Ace Autobody.

         20                 I would like to give every member of

         21  this Committee -- I am sorry, I had it together but

         22  I get flusticated (phonetic). Here is a copy of the

         23  15,000 pound law. Oh, the first thing is, I had it

         24  written down, let me go back and start and I will

         25  give you the papers after.
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          2                 Number one, I disagree with this law

          3  and I agree with Paul Rubenfeld. Normally Council

          4  President Mr. Vallone sends us out a notice of the

          5  hearing and what the hearing is about. We received

          6  no notice, and thank God I have what is known

          7  "angels", an angel called me and said, Murray,

          8  there is a hearing at City Hall, Monday, 10:00, and

          9  like Mr. Rubenfeld said, being we are about the

         10  oldest ones around, 10:00, Monday, is a tough time

         11  for me to leave my office.

         12                 There was no pre-hearing sent out.

         13  This is sort of what goes back years ago when they

         14  slipped through the 15,000 pound law. This bill has

         15  to be put on hold until the major fleets who are

         16  listed, some of them are listed in the Ace Autobody

         17  thing, they are in the Pendotomin (phonetic), there

         18  are truck rental companies, there are fleets, there

         19  are many different operators in this case. This is

         20  not a towman's case. This is what you call a group

         21  case. You will see the names, there are close to 39

         22  people, defendants.

         23                 This bill has to be put on hold until

         24  the major fleet, such as UPS, who I do some towing,

         25  Fed Ex Airborne, independent messenger services,
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          2  plumbing, electrician, air conditioning, rental

          3  associations, which is National Lease and After

          4  Lease (phonetic), who operate small vans, which now

          5  will jump technically up from $95 to $125, if they

          6  have a fender-bender.

          7                 There is also the group called Fleet

          8  Supervisors, whose members run different fleets.

          9  These people were not notified. Con Edison, Brooklyn

         10  Union Gas run small vans, they haven't any notice.

         11  These people will now go from technically $55 tows

         12  to $95 to $125 tows. So, in other words, possible

         13  they are in a hurry to put this bill through, Murray

         14  Rude, well, not Murray Rude, the Society will be

         15  notifying the industries that they have got to get

         16  an injunction and stop any kind of bill that you

         17  want to put through that will affect their vehicles.

         18                 There is another thing. You will get

         19  a copy of the Owner's Bill of Rights that was never,

         20  in two years, published, or the public notified. I

         21  will show you from '73, I played with crayons. I

         22  didn't have a chance to get these out, I had some

         23  person problems. These Bill of Rights, the average

         24  cop does not tell the customer about, the cars are

         25  winding up in the DARP tow guy's shop. The officer
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          2  does the same thing where it comes to this 15,000

          3  pound law. I have taken two trucks off the line

          4  because they are DARP'g trucks over 15,000 pounds.

          5  So, I have printed, and I also, again, wrote with

          6  crayons, and the trucking companies, you are right.

          7  You have the right if you can call your own tow car.

          8  I also have in there federal Judge Denesis

          9  (phonetic) ruling on the 15,000 pound law, which

         10  states that the City has no jurisdiction on

         11  commercial vehicles 15,000 pounds if they are

         12  disabled mechanically, if they are in a

         13  fender-bender they have the right to call their own

         14  man being they are over 15,000. This law has been

         15  ignored. I have spoken to the Captains of the Police

         16  Department who come up here, and we have had

         17  hearings, I keep shoving this down, these things now

         18  are going out for the trucking industry, I am also

         19  going on the Internet with this to the industries

         20  all over. This is a major abuse that the police are

         21  ignoring this.

         22                 I have a thing here --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Murray, try to

         24  keep on the subject. You have to keep on the

         25  subject.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            56

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2                 MR. RUDE: Okay.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: That's an

          4  enforcement issue.

          5                 MR. RUDE: Okay. Then this law, I am

          6  sorry, you did not give out proper notice to the

          7  people who are affected. Again, I will have to

          8  contact the fleets, the fleet supervisors, Con

          9  Edison, and you will have to hold another hearing

         10  and let them get up there and say wait a minute, you

         11  are taking our vans, and you are shoving them into a

         12  rate increase. Yes, the towman is entitled to a rate

         13  increase, I should know better than anyone, I worked

         14  for 21 years without a rate increase, but I will say

         15  one little thing. I was in my late 20s, I was out

         16  about two, three in the morning on a rainy night,

         17  and an officer walked over to me and was

         18  complaining. I says, what are you complaining? He

         19  says, well, the hours, the money they pay us. I

         20  says, tell me something, did anybody put a gun to

         21  your head and say you should become a cop? I am out

         22  here because I was born in this business, this is my

         23  bread and butter. The people are here who want rate

         24  increases and they are complaining. Nobody put a gun

         25  to their head and said, hey, go into the tow
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          2  business. They figured it's a big money-maker. They

          3  are now buying medium, heavy-duty tow trucks which

          4  they are not even buying, they are leasing them.

          5  They can tow trucks over the 15,000 pounds. So, that

          6  is another gun to my head. They are cutting into my

          7  vans, they took my vans and they are going to take

          8  my 15,000 pound trucks away, and it costs me to take

          9  equipment off the line, and I can't get help because

         10  most of them have illegal drivers. When you go over

         11  a certain weight you are supposed to have a CDLA

         12  driver. These towmen do not have CDLA drivers. So

         13  that means the State of New York federal government

         14  can step -- State of New York especially can step in

         15  and make every tow driver produce a CDLA license. Do

         16  you want to get into the heavier truck line? Let

         17  them. It requires log books, drug testing, and

         18  everything that I go through. And to talk about

         19  insurance, they are going to have to come up with a

         20  million dollar insurance policy, plus cargo stuff.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Murray, keep

         22  to the issue.

         23                 MR. RUDE: The issue is this bill was

         24  pushed quickly --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: No, it's not
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          2  being -- Murray, this is a first hearing of this

          3  bill. Every bill that we hear, we have a first

          4  hearing, and just like today, before we started this

          5  hearing we had the tour buses, they had a hearing,

          6  and they had an opportunity to testify. That is

          7  every hearing we have ever had.

          8                 MR. RUDE: I know that.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: So, nobody

         10  tried to shove this. The records are public.

         11  Everybody has access to these records, they are on

         12  the Internet, they are on the television, and

         13  anybody can find out at any given time when and what

         14  the meeting is about.

         15                 MR. RUDE: I apologize saying it the

         16  wrong way, because I am known for putting my foot in

         17  my big mouth. But as far as I am concerned, when it

         18  came to this federal court case, I was there, I kept

         19  my mouth shut, we went to three, the third Federal

         20  Court in California just ruled --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Murray, the

         22  bill.

         23                 MR. RUDE: The bill is --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: We have to

         25  stick to the bill. Are you for it or against it?
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          2                 MR. RUDE: I am against it.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Okay.

          4                 MR. RUDE: I intend to get the

          5  trucking industry lined up behind me.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Thank you.

          7  Thank you very much.

          8                 MR. RUDE: A better notification for

          9  the next hearing so I can get people here.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: It will be the

         11  notification that is always given to everybody.

         12                 MR. RUDE: It wasn't given by Council

         13  President Vallone's Office this time.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Okay, we will

         15  let you know. Thank you.

         16                 Being no other witnesses, this

         17  meeting is adjourned.

         18                 (Hearing concluded at 11:48 a.m.)
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          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified

         10  Shorthand Reporter and Notary Public in and for the

         11  State of New York, do hereby certify that the

         12  foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of the

         13  within proceeding.

         14                 I further certify that I am not

         15  related to any of the parties to this action by

         16  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         17  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         18                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         19  set my hand this 11th day of December 2000.
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